Public Document Pack

Governance, Audit and Performance Committee
Date:

Monday, 22nd November, 2021

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden,
CB11 4ER

Broadcast:
https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=337&MId=5747
Chair:
Members:

Councillor E Oliver
Councillors H Asker, G Driscoll (Vice-Chair), J Emanuel, M Foley,
A Khan, B Light, S Luck and J De Vries

Substitutes:

Councillors A Dean, P Fairhurst, V Isham, G Smith and M Sutton

Public Speaking
At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for
members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having
given notice by 12 noon two working days before the meeting. Please register your
intention to speak at this meeting by writing to committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
Public speakers will be offered the opportunity for an officer to read out their
questions or statement at the meeting, and encouraged to attend the meeting via
Zoom to readout their questions or statement themselves. For further information,
please see overleaf. Those who would like to watch the meeting live can do so
virtually here. The broadcast will be made available as soon as the meeting begins.

AGENDA
PART 1
Open to Public and Press
1

Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest
To receive any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

2

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

5-8

To consider the minutes of the previous meeting.
3

Public Sector Auditor Appointment 2023/24 - 2027/28

9 - 16

To consider the Public Sector Auditor Appointment 2023/24 –
2027/28.
4

Grants Governance Update

17 - 19

To receive the Grants Governance Update report.
5

Community Governance Review 2021 - Results from Final
Consultations

20 - 33

To consider the Community Governance Review 2021 – Results
from Final Consultations.
6

Review of Pilot Scheme Rule 2.4: Time permitted for
questions to the Executive and Committee Chairs

34 - 44

To consider the Review of Pilot Scheme Rule 2.4: Time permitted
for questions to the Executive and Committee Chairs.
7

Quarter 2 2021/22 Performance Indicator Report

45 - 63

To receive the Performance Indicator Report for Quarter 2 2021/22.
8

2021/22 Corporate Risk Register Update - Borrowing &
Investments
To consider the 2021/22 Corporate Risk Register Update Borrowing & Investments report.

9

Exclusion of public and press

64 - 69

Consideration of reports containing exempt information under
Schedule 12 A of the Local Government Act 1972, information
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information).
PART 2
Exclusion of Public and Press
10

Internal Audit Report - UDC Governance Arrangements with
UNSL

70 - 87

To receive the Internal Audit Report – UDC Governance
Arrangements with UNSL.
11

UDC Internal Governance Arrangements with UNSL - UDC
Management Treatment Response Plan
To consider the UDC Internal Governance Arrangements with UNSL
– UDC Management Treatment Response Plan.

88 - 91

MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC
In light of the High Court judgement regarding the extension of remote meeting
regulations, Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings have returned to in-person
and have been held on-site from Thursday 6th May 2021. However, due to social
distancing measures and capacity considerations in line with the Council’s risk
assessment, public access and participation will continue to be encouraged virtually
until further notice.
Members of the public are welcome to listen live to the debate of any of the Council’s
Cabinet or Committee meetings. All live broadcasts and meeting papers can be
viewed on the Council’s calendar of meetings webpage.
Members of the public are permitted to speak at this meeting and will be encouraged
to do so via the video conferencing platform Zoom. If you wish to make a statement
via Zoom video link, you will need to register with Democratic Services by midday
two working days before the meeting. There is a 15 minute public speaking limit and
3 minute speaking slots will be given on a first come, first served basis. Those
wishing to make a statement via video link will require an internet connection and a
device with a microphone and video camera enabled. Those wishing to make a
statement to the meeting who do not have internet access can do so via telephone.
Technical guidance on the practicalities of participating via Zoom will be given at the
point of confirming your registration slot, but if you have any questions regarding the
best way to participate in this meeting please call Democratic Services on 01799 510
369/410/467/548 who will advise on the options available.
Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages. For more
information please call 01799 510510.
Facilities for people with disabilities
If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510
369/410/467/548 as soon as possible prior to the meeting.
For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510369, 510548, 510410 or 510467
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER
Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550
Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

Agenda Item 2
GOVERNANCE, AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE held at
COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, LONDON ROAD, SAFFRON
WALDEN, CB11 4ER, on TUESDAY, 28 SEPTEMBER 2021 at 7.00 pm

GAP15

Present:

Councillor E Oliver (Chair)
Councillors G Driscoll (Vice-Chair), J Emanuel, A Khan, B Light,
S Luck and M Sutton (substitute for Councillor Foley)

Officers in
attendance:

R Auty (Assistant Director - Corporate Services), P Evans
(Customer Services and Performance Manager), B Ferguson
(Democratic Services Manager), C Gibson (Democratic Services
Officer), P Hardy (Electoral Services Manager), A Knight
(Assistant Director - Resources), O Knight (PFI and
Performance Officer) and A Webb (Director - Finance and
Corporate Services).

Also
present:

A Lefevre (BDO)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Apologies were given by Councillors Asker, Foley and De Vries. Councillor
Sutton was the substitute for Councillor Foley.
Councillor Light subsequently declared an interest in Agenda Item 5 as a
member of Saffron Walden Town Council.

GAP 16

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2021 were approved as correct.

GAP17

HOUSING BENEFIT SUBSIDY AUDIT 2019/20 AND AUDITORS GRANT
LETTER
The Chair welcomed Ms Lefevre (BDO) to the meeting and gave a summary of
the report. The Assistant Director- Resources explained how the LA Error/AD
overpayments sum of £37,007 had been retained by UDC.
Ms Lefevre informed Members of the BDO auditing arrangements. She said that
Mr Eagles would oversee the audit of final accounts up to March 2021 but that
she then took responsibility moving forward. She said that it was hoped that
once the external investigation had been completed that the 2019/20 and the
2020/21 accounts could be signed off shortly after each other but that no
timescales could currently be given. Ms Lefevre also indicated there was
currently a lack of public sector audit resources but that the intention was to
move forward on audits.

Page 5

In response to various questions, the Director – Finance and Corporate Services
confirmed that the 2019/20 audit of accounts could not be concluded until the
external investigation had been completed. He said that Moody’s were due to
provide a credit rating imminently for UDC and that he had been in many
discussions with them. He said they were aware of the external investigation but
that as it was not related to a financial matter, they had indicated that it would not
affect the credit rating. He explained that there were several matters that could
impact the rating, particularly the financial position of UDC and commercial
activities.
Members noted the report.

GAP18

REVIEW OF PILOT SCHEME: TIME PERMITTED FOR QUESTIONS TO THE
EXECUTIVE AND COMMITTEE CHAIRS
The Chair gave a summary of the report. Councillor Driscoll confirmed that he
was happy to continue to Chair the Task and Finish Group and that he was
waiting for confirmation from one Member that they would be willing to join the
Group, together with Councillors Emanuel and Khan who confirmed that were
happy to sit on the Group.
RESOLVED that GAP Committee:




GAP19

Re-establish the Task & Finish Group relating to Rule 2.4 to allow
consideration of member feedback and to deliberate what
amendments, if any, are required.
To appoint Councillors Driscoll, Khan, Emanuel and one additional
Councillor, to be determined by Councillor Driscoll, to the Task &
Finish Group.
Instruct the Task & Finish Group to produce a final proposal for
consideration of the GAP Committee on 30 November 2021.

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW
The Electoral Services Manager gave a summary of the report.
Discussions focussed on the recommendations relating to Saffron Walden Town
Council and Sewards End Parish Council (parish boundary). The Electoral
Services Manager explained the significance of the proposed development land
off Radwinter Road that currently rests in the parish of Sewards End but could
move to be within the Saffron Walden Town Council boundary line. He said there
was currently no agreement in place between Sewards End Parish Council and
Saffron Walden Town Council but that in the event of planning permission being
granted an interim community governance review could take place and be
brought back to GAP for resolution. He provided explanations for the other
recommendations made relating to Saffron Walden Town Council.
RESOLVED that GAP Committee approves the recommendations as set
out in Appendix A for final public consultation.

Page 6

GAP20

2021/22 ANNUAL PFI CONTRACT UPDATE
The PFI and Performance Officer and the Customer Services and Performance
Manager gave a summary of the report that provided an annual update on the
Uttlesford Leisure PFI contract for the 2021/22 financial year.
In response to questions relating to the potential relocation of Helena Romanes
School in Great Dunmow, officers confirmed that they were being proactive in
discussions with all contract Partners. It was noted that whilst there could be a
reduction in income there might be benefits with regards to local developments
to offset this. Officers said the indication had been that teaching at the new site
would begin in 2023.
In response to a question about customer satisfaction statistics, officers said that
this was captured through monthly surveys at all three sites and that a report
was to be published in October 2021 that would benchmark UDC’s position in
relation to other public sector facilities. Councillor Khan requested that this report
be brought back.
It was confirmed that the contract ran until 2035 with no break clause.
Members noted the report.

GAP21

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN REPORT 2020/21
The Assistant Director – Corporate Services gave a summary of the report that
summarised the complaints relating to the Council’s services dealt with by the
Ombudsman’s office for the year ended 31 March 2021 as well as the
complaints and compliments received by the Council in the same period.
He said there had been 4 complaints received by the Ombudsman; he
highlighted that the Council had been found at fault in relation to a disabled
facilities grant and adaptations case and a remedy of £7,000 had been awarded
to the complainant. This matter had been resolved and reported to Council on 20
July 2021. He said that there had been 175 complaints dealt with internally, of
which 52 had been upheld, many of which had been administrative errors due to
the pandemic workload. He also reported that 27 formal compliments had been
received.
RESOLVED that GAP Committee note the contents of the Ombudsman’s
annual review letter and the position with regards to complaints and
compliments for the year ended 31 March 2021.

GAP22

QUARTER 1 2021/22 PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT
The PFI and Performance Officer gave a summary of the report, which
presented the Quarter 1 2021/22 outturn and data analysis for all Key
Performance Indicators (KPI’s) and Performance Indicators (PI’s). He drew

Page 7

Members’ attention to paragraphs 16 and 17 of the report that detailed the four
KPI’s that had not met their target but were within the 10% threshold (amber)
and the two KPI’s that had exceeded the 10% threshold (red).
He said that since the report had been prepared the PI’s in the Development
Management area had been reviewed and that methodology in respect of
planning appeals would revert in Quarter 2 to the standard as recommended by
MHCLG . This would enable comparisons to be made with other Councils.
Councillor Khan commended the report and highlighted three major current
concerns as being housing, employment and debt levels. He asked that
consideration be given to picking up data from these areas within the PI’s. The
PFI and Performance Officer said that he would take this back to the Corporate
Management Team.
Members noted the Quarter 1 2021/22 Performance Indicator report.

The meeting closed at 7.50 pm.

Page 8

Agenda Item 3
Committee:

Governance, Audit and Performance Committee

Date:

Title:

Public Sector Auditor Appointment

Monday, 22
November 2021

2023/24 – 2027/28
Report
Author:

Angela Knight, Assistant Director - Resources
aknight@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary
1. The current appointment of our external auditors will end in March 2023 and this
report sets out the options available for the procurement of the new 5 year appointing
period 2023/24 to 2027/28.
2. In July 2016, the Secretary of State for Housing Communities and Local Government
specified PSAA as an appointing person for principal local government and police
bodies for audits from 2018/19 Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA).
The Secretary of State has confirmed PSAA as in the role of appointing person for
eligible bodies for the period commencing April 2023.
3. The appointment of external auditors must be carried out in accordance with the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing Person)
Regulations 2015 (the Regulations).
4. The Council has two options for the procurement of the external auditor appointment;
I.

To establish an auditor panel and conduct our own procurement exercise

II.

to become an opted-in authority with Public Sector Audit Appointments
Limited (PSAA), being an appointing person for the purposes of the
Regulations. Who will carry out the full procurement process on behalf of all
opted in eligible authorities.

5. A sector wide procurement conducted by PSAA will produce better outcomes for the
Council on both quality and cost than any procurement we undertook ourselves.
6. Use of the PSAA will be less resource intensive and we are unlikely to have capacity
or the specialised knowledge of the sector to establish an auditor panel and conduct
our own procurement.
7. Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 requires that
a decision to opt in must be made by Full Council.
Recommendation
8. It is requested that the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee recommend
to Council that it ‘opts in’ to the appointing person arrangements made by Public
Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the appointment of external auditors.

Page 9

Financial Implications

9. No direct financial implications from this report. If PSAA is not used additional
resource will be needed to establish an auditor panel and conduct our own
procurement. Until option for procurement is completed it would not be
possible to ascertain additional financial implications for audit fees, although it
is anticipated that any increase will be minimised through using PSAA.
Background Papers
10. The following link provides full details of the appointing person process, this includes
the Procurement Strategy, the Scheme Prospectus and feedback from the
consultation carried out in June 2021
https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-information/appointing-period2023-24-2027-28/
Link providing a list of frequently asked questions with PSAA responses
https://www.psaa.co.uk/contact-us/frequently-asked-questions/
Impact
11.
Communication/Consultation

JET

Community Safety

N/A

Equalities

N/A

Health and Safety

N/A

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

N/A

Sustainability

N/A

Ward-specific impacts

N/A

Workforce/Workplace

N/A

Situation
12. The current auditor appointment which was for a period of five years comes to an end
in March 2023, we are now required to look at the process for a new appointment for
the five financial years from April 2023.
13. In line with the regulations, we are required to have an appointment in place no later
than 31 December of the financial year preceding the financial year the audit will take

Page 10

place. This means that the new arrangements must be in place by 31 December
2022.
14. The Local Authority can choose the way it procures its external auditors but this must
be in accordance with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Local
Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (the Regulations). The options are
Option 1 - To undertake an individual procurement and appointment exercise






In line with the regulations, we would be required to form an independent
auditor panel
There would not be the required resource to be able to manage this
process
The auditor panel would require specialised knowledge of the audit sector
It is unlikely that as an individual body we would be able to negotiate fees
or evidence value for money
Due to issues Audit firms are having with resourcing there is a strong
possibility that we would not receive any responses

Option 2 – ‘Opt in’ to PSAA’s sector led national scheme






avoid the necessity to establish an independent auditor panel (detailed
requirements specified by the Local Audit & Accountability Act, 2014)
avoid the need to manage their own auditor procurement
benefit from PSAA undertaking a robust process to validate fee variation
proposals
be able to support market sustainability and encourage realistic prices in a
challenging market
PSAA operate on a not for profit basis and distribute any surplus funds to
scheme members

15. There have been large amounts of published issues regarding Audit delays and the
lack of resource available, this is not limited to the public sector but spans all sectors.
16. The PSAA ran a consultation during June 2021 to identify the key issues and look for
ways to address these, the consultation included responses from both eligible bodies
(LA’s) and Audit firms. The consultation is included in the links in the background
papers above.
17. The ‘opt in’ option provides continuous contract compliance monitoring, and
standardised setting of scale fees and fee variations.
Risk Analysis
Risk
Successful appointment
not achieved to
timescales

Likelihood
Low

Impact
High

Mitigating actions
Early consideration of
preferred
option/approach

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 11

22 September 2021
To:

Mr Tinlin, Chief Executive
Uttlesford District Council

Copied to: Mr Webb, S151 Officer
Councillor Oliver, Chair of Audit Committee or equivilent
Dear Mr Tinlin,

Invitation to opt into the national scheme for auditor appointments from April 2023
I want to ensure that you are aware the external auditor for the audit of your accounts for
2023/24 has to be appointed before the end of December 2022. That may seem a long way
away but, as your organisation has a choice about how to make that appointment, your
decision-making process needs to begin soon.
We are pleased that the Secretary of State has confirmed PSAA in the role of the appointing
person for eligible principal bodies for the period commencing April 2023. Joining PSAA’s
national scheme for auditor appointments is one of the choices available to your organisation.
In June 2021 we issued a draft prospectus and invited your views and comments on our early
thinking on the development of the national scheme for the next period. Feedback from the
sector has been extremely helpful and has enabled us to refine our proposals which are now
set out in the scheme prospectus and our procurement strategy. Both documents can be
downloaded from our website which also contains a range of useful information that you may
find helpful.
The national scheme timetable for appointing auditors from 2023/24 means we now need to
issue a formal invitation to you to opt into these arrangements. In order to meet the
requirements of the relevant regulations, we also attach a form of acceptance of our invitation
which you must use if your organisation decides to join the national scheme. We have
specified the five consecutive financial years beginning 1 April 2023 as the compulsory
appointing period for the purposes of the regulations which govern the national scheme.
Given the very challenging local audit market, we believe that eligible bodies will be best
served by opting to join the scheme and have attached a short summary of why we believe
that is the best solution both for individual bodies and the sector as a whole.
I would like to highlight three matters to you:
1.

if you opt to join the national scheme, we need to receive your formal acceptance of this
invitation by Friday 11 March 2022;

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ

Page 12

2.

the relevant regulations require that, except for a body that is a corporation sole (e.g. a
police and crime commissioner), the decision to accept our invitation and to opt in must
be made by the members of the authority meeting as a whole e.g. Full Council or
equivalent. We appreciate this will need to be built into your decision-making timetable.
We have deliberately set a generous timescale for bodies to make opt in decisions (24
weeks compared to the statutory minimum of 8 weeks) to ensure that all eligible bodies
have sufficient time to comply with this requirement; and

3.

if you decide not to accept the invitation to opt in by the closing date, you may
subsequently make a request to opt in, but only after 1 April 2023. We are required to
consider such requests and agree to them unless there are reasonable grounds for their
refusal. PSAA must consider a request as the appointing person in accordance with the
Regulations. The Regulations allow us to recover our reasonable costs for making
arrangements to appoint a local auditor in these circumstances, for example if we need
to embark on a further procurement or enter into further discussions with our contracted
firms.

If you have any other questions not covered by our information, do not hesitate to contact us
by email at ap2@psaa.co.uk. We also publish answers to frequently asked questions on our
website.
If you would like to discuss a particular issue with us, please send an email also to
ap2@psaa.co.uk, and we will respond to you.

Yours sincerely
Tony Crawley
Chief Executive
Encl: Summary of the national scheme

Page 13

Why accepting the national scheme opt-in invitation is the best solution
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA)
We are a not-for-profit, independent company limited by guarantee incorporated by the Local
Government Association in August 2014.
We have the support of the LGA, which in 2014 worked to secure the option for principal local
government and police bodies to appoint auditors through a dedicated sector-led national
body.
We have the support of Government; MHCLG’s Spring statement confirmed our appointment
because of our “strong technical expertise and the proactive work they have done to help to
identify improvements that can be made to the process”.
We are an active member of the new Local Audit Liaison Committee, chaired by MHCLG and
attended by key local audit stakeholders, enabling us to feed in body and audit perspectives
to decisions about changes to the local audit framework, and the need to address timeliness
through actions across the system.
We conduct research to raise awareness of local audit issues, and work with MHCLG and
other stakeholders to enable changes arising from Sir Tony Redmond’s review, such as more
flexible fee setting and a timelier basis to set scale fees.
We have established an advisory panel, which meets three times per year. Its membership is
drawn from relevant representative groups of local government and police bodies, to act as a
sounding board for our scheme and to enable us to hear your views on the design and
operation of the scheme.
The national scheme for appointing local auditors
In July 2016, the Secretary of State specified PSAA as an appointing person for principal local
government and police bodies for audits from 2018/19, under the provisions of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. Acting
in accordance with this role PSAA is responsible for appointing an auditor and setting scales
of fees for relevant principal authorities that have chosen to opt into its national scheme. 98%
of eligible bodies made the choice to opt-in for the five-year period commencing in April 2018.
We will appoint an auditor for all opted-in bodies for each of the five financial years beginning
from 1 April 2023.

We aim for all opted-in bodies to receive an audit service of the required quality at a realistic
market price and to support the drive towards a long term competitive and more sustainable
market for local audit. The focus of our quality assessment will include resourcing capacity
and capability including sector knowledge, and client relationship management and
communication.
What the appointing person scheme from 2023 will offer
We believe that a sector-led, collaborative, national scheme stands out as the best option for
all eligible bodies, offering the best value for money and assuring the independence of the
auditor appointment.

Page 14

The national scheme from 2023 will build on the range of benefits already available for
members:
•

transparent and independent auditor appointment via a third party;

•

the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, registered auditor;

•

appointment, if possible, of the same auditors to bodies involved in significant
collaboration/joint working initiatives, if the parties believe that it will enhance efficiency;

•

on-going management of any independence issues which may arise;

•

access to a specialist PSAA team with significant experience of working within the context
of the relevant regulations to appoint auditors, managing contracts with audit firms, and
setting and determining audit fees;

•

a value for money offer based on minimising PSAA costs and distribution of any surpluses
to scheme members - in 2019 we returned a total £3.5million to relevant bodies and more
recently we announced a further distribution of £5.6m in August 2021;

•

collective efficiency savings for the sector through undertaking one major procurement as
opposed to a multiplicity of smaller procurements;

•

avoids the necessity for local bodies to establish an auditor panel and undertake an auditor
procurement, enabling time and resources to be deployed on other pressing priorities;

•

updates from PSAA to Section 151 officers and Audit Committee Chairs on a range of
local audit related matters to inform and support effective auditor-audited body
relationships; and

•

concerted efforts to work with other stakeholders to develop a more sustainable local audit
market.

We are committed to keep developing our scheme, taking into account feedback from scheme
members, suppliers and other stakeholders, and learning from the collective post-2018
experience. This work is ongoing, and we have taken a number of initiatives to improve the
operation of the scheme for the benefit of all parties.
Importantly we have listened to your feedback to our recent consultation, and our response is
reflected in the scheme prospectus.
Opting in
The closing date for opting in is 11 March 2022. We have allowed more than the minimum
eight-week notice period required, because the formal approval process for most eligible
bodies is a decision made by the members of the authority meeting as a whole [Full Council
or equivalent], except police and crime commissioners who are able to make their own
decision.
We will confirm receipt of all opt-in notices. A full list of eligible bodies that opt in will be
published on our website. Once we have received an opt-in notice, we will write to you to
request information on any joint working arrangements relevant to your auditor appointment,
and any potential independence matters which may need to be taken into consideration when
appointing your auditor.

Page 15

Local Government Reorganisation
We are aware that reorganisations in the local government areas of Cumbria, Somerset, and
North Yorkshire were announced in July 2021. Subject to parliamentary approval shadow
elections will take place in May 2022 for the new Councils to become established from 1 April
2023. Newly established local government bodies have the right to opt into PSAA’s scheme
under Regulation 10 of the Appointing Person Regulations 2015. These Regulations also set
out that a local government body that ceases to exist is automatically removed from the
scheme.
If for any reason there is any uncertainty that reorganisations will take place or meet the
current timetable, we would suggest that the current eligible bodies confirm their acceptance
to opt in to avoid the requirement to have to make local arrangements should the
reorganisation be delayed.
Next Steps
We expect to formally commence the procurement of audit services in early February 2022.
At that time our procurement documentation will be available for opted-in bodies to view
through our e-tendering platform.
Our recent webinars to support our consultation proved to be popular, and we will be running
a series of webinars covering specific areas of our work and our progress to prepare for the
second appointing period. Details can be found on our website and in the scheme prospectus.

Page 16

Agenda Item 4
Committee:

Governance, Audit and Performance
Committee

Title:

Grants Governance Update

Report
Author:

Elizabeth Brooks, Audit Manager

Date:
Monday, 22
November 2021

ebrooks@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary
1. In Spring 2021, Internal Audit undertook a review at the request of GAP
Committee of the governance arrangements for the Council’s Grants to
Community Organisations. The outcome was subsequently presented to GAP
Committee in June 2021, at which the Chair requested an update be provided
to November 2021 GAP Committee to outline the progress being made
against the recommendations in the report.

Recommendations
2. GAP Committee are requested to note the content of this report

Financial Implications
3. None
Background Papers
4. None.
Impact
5.
Communication/Consultation

This report has been discussed with, and
noted by, Service Managers and CMT

Community Safety

None

Equalities

None

Health and Safety

None

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

None

Page 17

Sustainability

None

Ward-specific impacts

None

Workforce/Workplace

None

Situation
6. The original audit highlighted several findings, including two high priorities
relating to the Council’s Grant Policy and Terms and Conditions of Funding.
Other medium priority findings related to the eligibility and selection process,
monitoring of multiple grant receipts, grant monitoring, and reporting and
transparency.
7. While not enough time has elapsed to allow for a formal Internal Audit follow
up to independently verify the implementation of the recommendations, the
Audit Manager and the Communities Team (Fiona Gardiner, Communities
Manager and Sue Hayden, Community Development Officer) have been
liaising frequently and the team have provided the following update to Internal
Audit:
 Several of the Council’s small and one-off grants are due to be
amalgamated together into a proposed Communities Grant. This should
improve consistency and transparency across the grants process.
 In turn, a new central Grants Policy for Communities Grants has been
developed and Internal Audit have provided feedback and advice on the
content. Once the final version is complete, the Policy will be sent to CMT
in December prior to GAP in January for comment, before being present to
Cabinet. An EqHIA will also be completed and attached alongside.
 New terms and conditions of funding are also being developed for the
Communities Grant in line with the new Policy, as well as refreshed and
revised application forms and confirmation letters to ensure consistency
and transparency across the application process. It is intended that this will
all be in place by April 2022 to cover all grants for 2022/23 onwards.
 For the Council’s large grants over £50,000 e.g., Voluntary Sector Grants,
new Service Level Agreements will be put in place to more formally set out
the funding agreement, including roles and responsibilities, service
standards/ expectations, performance indicators, monitoring,
communication, legal clauses and dispute resolution etc.
 The Director Finance and Corporate Services is given delegated powers to
approve all grants which will be devolved down to the Communities, Health
and Well-being Manager in consultation with the Community Development
Officer and the Portfolio Holder for Communities (‘The Panel’) for
consistency purposes, except where the application is in the Portfolio
Holder’s ward, in which case the Portfolio Holder for Finance will fulfil this
role.

Page 18

 A revised programme for monitoring grants is also being developed to
ensure consistency and appropriateness of funding levels and this will be
in place for all new grants awarded for 2022/23.
 In addition, a central grants database has been established where all
grants administered by the Communities, Health and Well-being Team,
including any external funding received, is stored and monitored. The
transparency pages on the Council’s website have also been updated for
2020/21 and will be updated again for the current financial year in April
2022.
8. Following the implementation of the new Policy and award of grants for
2022/23, Internal Audit will undertake a formal follow up to assess the
effectiveness of the revised process to provide independent assurance over
the improvement in the control framework. It is anticipated that this will be
presented to June 2022 GAP Committee to allow time for grant awards,
disbursements and some initial monitoring under the new Policy and process
to have been undertaken.
Risk Analysis
9.
Risk

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigating actions

Lack of robust
governance
arrangements for
the governance of
grant funding to
community
organisations
may result in
financial loss
and/or
reputational
damage.

2

3

Per recommendations
in original report.

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 19

Agenda Item 5
Committee:

Governance Audit and Performance

Title:

Community Governance Review 2021 –
Results from final consultation

Report
Author

Phil Hardy, Electoral Services Manager
phardy@uttlesford.gov.uk

Date:
22 November 2021

Summary
1. The Community Governance Review of parish boundaries and electoral
arrangements commenced in June 2021 and this report incorporates the final
feedback on the proposals from the initial consultation.
Recommendation
2. To approve:
the recommendations as set out in Appendix A.
Financial Implications
3. There are no financial implications other than officer time and some minor
printing and potential postage costs.
Background Papers
4. The following papers were referred to in the preparation of this report and are
publicly available or available for inspection from the author of the report:





The Local Government Boundary Commission for England guidance
“Guidance on community governance reviews”;
The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007;
Minutes of the Governance Audit and Performance Committee 22 October
2020;
Minutes of the Governance Audit and Performance Committee 28
September 2021

Page 20

Impact
5.
Communication/Consultation

Community Safety
Equalities
Health and Safety
Human Rights/Legal
Implications
Sustainability
Ward-specific impacts
Workforce/Workplace

Consultation with statutory consultees, the
public and all parish and town councils
within the district will take place.
None
None
None
None
None
Any alterations to parish boundaries may
have an impact on ward boundaries.
None

Situation
6. Any revised electoral arrangements will come into effect at the first ordinary
elections to the parish council following the Reorganisation Order. It is
important that such orders should be made sufficiently far in advance to allow
preparations for the conduct of those elections to be made. The next scheduled
ordinary elections are in May 2023.
7. There is a duty on the Council, as a “principal authority” under the relevant
legislation to have regard to the need to secure that any community
governance for the area under review reflects the identities and interests of the
local community in that area, and that it is effective and convenient.
8. Uttlesford District Council as the principal council has the power to make an
Order affecting parish boundaries and parish electoral arrangements. The
Council does not have the power to change district ward, county electoral
division boundaries, or electoral arrangements for these administrative levels.
However, if an Order is made by the Council to alter the parish ward boundary,
then the Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) would
consider making, by means of a Consequential Changes Order, an alteration to
the district wards and county divisions affected. Changes made by virtue of an
Order under the community governance review would take effect at the next
ordinary election of parish councillors. It is possible that changes made by a
Consequential Order may be made during the same timescale.

Risk Analysis
9.
Risk
2
That identities and
interests of the local
community in the area
are not reflected, and

Likelihood
2

Impact
2

Page 21

Mitigating actions
To conduct a full districtwide community
governance review in
ample time to take effect
at the ordinary local

that community
governance is not
effective or convenient

elections in May 2023.

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 22

APPENDIX A
Terms of reference





To review the community governance arrangements for all parish councils to
ensure they reflect the identities and interests of the local community in that
area, and whether it is effective and convenient including its appropriate
member representation.
To consider parish warding or de-warding, as appropriate.
To consider ward and electoral division boundary changes consequential upon
any parish boundary change made, as a matter then to be referred to the
Local Government Boundary Commission for England.

Consultation on the terms of reference
The requirement is to consult the local government electors in the area under review,
and others which have an interest in the review. Consultees will therefore include:







Local government electors
Parish councils
Essex County Council
Ward Councillors
Local residents’ associations
Essex Association of Local Councils

Community Governance Review Timetable
Stage 1 consultation has now concluded and following this meeting, a notice will be
published on the council’s website with the recommendations for the final stage 2
consultation.
Stage 2 consultation will run from 1 October to 31 October 2021 and the results of
this final consultation would come back to this committee on 30 November.
An Order is then made, but changes do not come in to affect until the scheduled May
2023 parish council elections.

Comments received during final stage 2 consultation
The full comments can be seen on this council’s website
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/ParishCGR

Chrishall Parish Council (council size)
Proposal
The Parish Council have requested that their membership be reduced in size due
to the constant struggle to find members to serve on the council.

Page 23

The current electorate size of the parish (as at 1 December 2020) is 468
represented by 9 members. Other councils of a similar size – Berden 393 electors
and 7 members; Broxted 420 electors and 7 members; Great Canfield 375
electors, also 7 members.
The minimum size for any parish council is 5 and the minimum number that the
National Association of Local Councils recommend is 7 members.
No further comments were received at the final consultation stage and as a result
the recommendation to reduce its membership size is still proposed.
Recommendation
That the number of parish councillors be deceased to 7 members.

Clavering Parish Council (council size)
Proposal
To reduce the number of members from 11 to 9 as the council has struggled to fill
its full quota of councillors over several years. This did not come from the Parish
Council itself but from the Chair of the Parish as her personal recommendation.
The current electorate size of the parish (as at 1 December 2020) is 1,109
represented by 11 members. Other councils of a similar size – Great Chesterford
1,323 electors and 9 members; Henham 1,046 electors and 9 members. There
are some parishes, such as Thaxted with 11 members and twice the electorate
(2,581).
The minimum size for any parish council is 5 and the minimum number that the
National Association of Local Councils recommend is 7 members.
During the final consultation period, the Electoral Registration Officer did receive 3
objections to the proposal with the main comments that more seats encourage a
more diverse range of councillors. However, the Parish Council has now formally
considered the proposal and have supported the reduction in seats but to try to
encourage more people to stand for election. Consequently, members of this
committee be asked to support the initial proposal to reduce the membership.
Recommendation
That the number of parish councillors be decreased to 9 members.

Page 24

Elmdon and Wenden Lofts Parish Council (parish name)
Proposal by the parish Council
To change the name of the parish to Elmdon, Duddenhoe End and Wenden Lofts.
The parish is warded and the Duddenhoe End area is not reflected in the parish
name and the proposal by the parish council will enhance community identity.
No further comments were received at the final consultation stage and as a result
the recommendation is still supported.
Recommendation
That the parish name be changed to Elmdon, Duddenhoe End and Wenden Lofts.

Broxted Parish Council and Takeley Parish Councils (parish
boundary)
Proposal by member of the public to re-draw the boundary so the area of
Mole Hill Green comes under Broxted parish instead of Takeley.
Takeley is an un-warded parish with an electorate (as at 1 December 2020) of
2,621. This comprises 3 areas – Mole Hill Green with 109 electors; Priors Green
with 1,422 electors and Takeley Village with 2,213 electors. Mole Hill Green
comprises just 4% of the total parish electorate.
The adjoining Parish of Broxted comprises 416 electors. Broxted comes under the
district ward of Takeley and the County Electoral Division of Thaxted – the same
electoral areas as Takeley.
Broxted Parish Council have discussed the issue and express no view on a
change. Takeley Parish Council are yet to formally consider the issue. No other
comments have been received in support of such a change.
In view of the above and the proposal just being from one anonymous member of
the public, the initial recommendation to further explore the proposal be not
pursued.
Recommendation
That the proposal is not supported and there be no change in the boundary of
Broxted and Takeley parishes.

Page 25

Chickney Parish (parish boundary)
Proposal by a member of the public for Chickney parish to come under
Henham Parish Council.
Chickney is a civil parish but has no parish council. Chickney has an electorate of
just 38 as at 1 December 2020. Chickney is too small to have its own parish
council. Chickney currently comes under the District Ward of Takeley and the
County Electoral Division of Stansted.
Chickney’s electors do not have a parish element to their Council Tax precept.
The lowest level of government that Chickney electors vote for is the District
Council and this is for the Takeley Ward.
No further comments were received during the final stage 2 consultation period,
so the original proposal set out below be recommended.
Recommendation
The proposal to move Chickney to Henham be not supported, however, it is
proposed that Chickney be moved from the County Electoral Division of Stansted
to Thaxted Division, so tidying up an area resultant from a previous boundary
review following consultation with the Local Government Boundary Commission.

Elsenham and Henham Parish Councils (boundary change)
Proposal
Request that the parish boundary be re-drawn between Elsenham and Henham to
accommodate the new housing development as the houses would run right
through the current boundary.
Elsenham Parish Council is twice the size of Henham and future residents would
use Elsenham facilities more than Henham and consequently Elsenham Parish
Council request that all the new development come under their parish; a proposal
supported by Henham parish Council.
No further comments were received during the final stage 2 consultation period,
so the original proposal set out below be recommended.
Recommendation

Page 26

That the parish boundary be re-drawn as suggested by the Elsenham Parish
Council as follows and as shown at Appendix B.
From the north, the boundary would be moved from the eastern side of the railway
to the eastern side of the new footpath link to the station. It would then follow the
site boundary to the east and south until reaching the existing parish boundary; it
would continue from there to the east as at present.

Parishes of Great and Little Chesterford (parish boundary)
Proposal
Request by Great and Little Chesterford Parish Councils to re-draw the boundary
between the two parishes to incorporate the new housing development alongside
the B1383 in to Great Chesterford parish.
A comment was also received about moving both Great and Little Chesterford
Parishes to Cambridgeshire as it is stating that they have more in common with
that County area. This is outside the scope of this review as only parish
boundaries can be considered for change as part of this review. No other such
suggestions have come forward to support this.
No further comments were received during the final stage 2 consultation period,
so the original proposal set out below be recommended.
Recommendation
That the proposal to re-draw the parish boundary be supported and the new
boundary be as shown at Appendix C.

Strethall Parish (parish council)
Representations have been received strongly arguing the status quo for Strethall
i.e. the parish should remain with no parish council and stay as a civil parish in its
own right.
Strethall has no parish council and is an area with just 26 electors.
No parish precept is raised.
No further comments were received during the final stage 2 consultation period,
so the original proposal set out below be recommended.

Page 27

Recommendation
That no change take effect.

Stansted Mountfitchet Parish Council (parish council)
Communication received from the parish council saying that members are happy
for no change.
No further comments were received during the final stage 2 consultation period,
so the original proposal set out below be recommended.
Recommendation
That no change take effect.

Saffron Walden Town Council and Sewards End Parish Council
(parish boundary)
Saffron Walden Town Council seek to make a number of proposals as follows:
 To request the council to increase the number of councillors representing
Saffron Walden as a whole from 16 to 18 Councillors. This increase will
accord with NALC’s recommended ratios of 625 residents per Councillor.
 To request the council to re-join the ward boundary of Little Walden with
Castle Ward (in order to regain both the ratio of numbers and to ensure
inclusivity into Saffron Walden for those in Little Walden).
 To redraw the parish boundary line to incorporate the proposed development
land off Radwinter Road. This is the land which currently rests in the parish
of Sewards End Parish Council and is proposed for development by
Rosconn Group for circa 240 homes. The Town Council noted that whilst
this development sat outside of Saffron Walden, any new residents (should
future planning permission be granted) would likely associate more with
Saffron Walden than Sewards End. These residents would equally create a
demand on Town Council services on the basis that residents would
access the town centre, shops, services, facilities, public open spaces,
community and leisure facilities.
Saffron Walden is divided in to 4 wards as follows:

Ward

No of
seats

Electorate

Audley Ward

4

3565

4

3594

Castle Ward

Page 28

Little Walden Ward

1

197

Shire Ward

7

5550

16

12,906

The Electoral Registration Officer (ERO) can see no issue with merging Castle
and Little Walden wards together. The ERO would suggest that this ward be
renamed Castle and Little Walden and comprise 5 seats. The name would help
maintain community identity.
The ERO has no objection to increasing the size of the Town Council membership
due to continued electoral growth within the town.
It was originally reported to the last meeting of this Committee in September that
an increase to 20 seats for the Town Council be recommended. However, during
the final consultation period, the Town Council have reiterated their original
proposal for an increase to 18 seats as suggested in the revised recommendation.
As the planning application is yet to be considered no change be made to the
parish boundary, however there should be an opportunity in 2022 to review this
ahead of the May 2023 elections should the planning application be approved.
Recommendation
(a)

The Town Council have the following ward names and distribution of seats:
Ward

No of
seats

Electorate

Audley Ward

4

3565

Castle & Little Walden Ward

5

3791

Shire Ward

9

5550

TOTALS

18

12,906

In response to the proposal to enlarge the Town Council boundary by taking in an
area of Sewards End parish where the proposed new development is planned, the
Electoral Registration Officer supports in principle the logic put forward by the
Town Council, however it has concern over agreeing to this proposal as it is not
supported by Sewards End Parish Council and planning consent has not been
given.

Page 29

Sewards End Parish Council view is “that the proposed development that is
driving the request should not and will not be given planning permission and
therefore there is no need to amend the parish boundary”.
A map of the proposed development site is shown at Appendix D.
Recommendation
That if the development be granted planning permission, the Council consider a
possible change to the parish boundary as part of an Interim Community Governance
Review taking on board further consultations. Should the development go ahead and
remain in the Sewards End parish, consideration be given to (a) increase in its seats
from 7 to 9 due to the doubling in size of its electorate and (b) ward the parish – the
new development to comprise one ward and the older development the other ward,
with representation apportioned.

Page 30

APPENDIX B

Elsenham/Henham - planning application UTT/17/3573/OP
for up to 350 dwellings off Henham Road.

±
Henham CP

Elsenham CP

KEY
Parish Boundary
New Proposed Parish Boundary
UTT_17_3573_OP_APPEAL
Date: 14/09/2021

Scale: 1:5,580

Crown Copyright all rights reserved.
Uttlesford District Council 100018688 (2021)

Ordnance
Page
31 Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2021. OS
100030994

APPENDIX C

Gr
eat
/
Li
t
t
l
eChest
er
f
or
d–pl
anni
ngappr
ovalf
or76homes
–sou t
hoft
heA1383

±
Gr
eatChest
er
f
or
dCP

Li
t
t
l
eChest
er
f
or
dCP

Li
t
t
l
ebu r
yCP

KEY
Parish Boundary
New Proposed Parish Boundary
Date: 14/09/2021

Scale: 1:2,500

Crown Copyright all rights reserved.
Uttlesford District Council 100018688 (2021)

PageOrdnance
32 Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2021. OS
100030994

APPENDIX D

Saf
f
r
onWal
den/
Sewar
dsEnd–devel
opmentbyRu sconnHomesf
orar
ou nd240dwel
l
i
ngs

±

Sewar
dsEndCP
Saf
f
r
onWal
denCP

KEY
UTT_21_2509_OP_LOCATION
Parish
Date: 13/09/2021

Wi
mbi
shCP
Scale: 1:10,000

Crown Copyright all rights reserved.
Uttlesford District Council 100018688 (2021)

Ordnance
Page
33 Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2021. OS
100030994

Agenda Item 6
Committee:

Governance, Audit and Performance
Committee

Title:

Review of pilot scheme Rule 2.4: Time
permitted for questions to the Executive and
Committee Chairs

Report
Author:

Ben Ferguson, Democratic Services Manager

Date:
Monday, 22
November 2021

bferguson@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary
1. At the Annual Council meeting held on 18 May 2021, Members approved a pilot
scheme in relation to Rule 2.4 – ‘Time permitted for questions to the executive
and Committee Chairs’ at Full Council meetings.
2. It was agreed to trial the scheme for two Full Council meetings. The scheme was
trialled at the meeting held on 20 July 2021, and was trialled for a final time at the
meeting on 5 October 2021.
3. At the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee (GAP) meeting held on 28
September, Members agreed to establish a Task & Finish Group to review the
pilot scheme and make a final recommendation to GAP regarding Rule 2.4.
4. The Task & Finish Group was composed of Councillors Driscoll, Emanuel and
Khan. A fourth member was not appointed.
5. The Task & Finish Group considered a report regarding the pilot scheme and
summarising the headline areas to be reviewed. The report is attached as
Appendix B.
6. The headline areas for review included:
a. The provision of supplementary questions instead of clarification
questions.
b. Whether a formal mechanism is required that allows follow-up
questions to be asked/published if they are not reached within the 30
minutes.
c. To allow questions on matters that have occurred on the day of the
meeting. Currently, 9.00am on the day off the meeting is the cut-off for
urgent questions.
d. Whether non-urgent oral questions are to be permitted, alongside
written questions.
7. The Task & Finish Group met on 8 November 2021. A summary of their
comments can be found in the background section of this report.

Page 34

8. The Group considered the piloted Rule 2.4 and associated protocol and have
made a recommendation to GAP. The amended Rule and protocol have been
attached as Appendix A. Tracked changes have been left on to highlight the
changes proposed.
9. The Group recommends that a mechanism be introduced to incorporate written
responses to urgent oral and clarification questions that are not answered at the
meeting itself. GAP are asked to determine whether written responses should be
published within 5 or 10 working days after the meeting has taken place.
10. GAP are asked to recommend the revised Rule and protocol to Full Council. The
recommendation will be brought to the Full Council meeting on 7 December 2021.
Recommendations
11. That the Committee recommends to Council that the Constitution be amended in
regards to Rule 2.4 of the Council Procedure Rules and the associated protocol
as set out in Appendix A to this report, subject to resolving whether written
answers be provided after the meeting within 5 or 10 working days.
Financial Implication
12. None.
Background Papers
13. Full Council report considered on 18 May 2021 and appendices (Item 14).
14. Governance, Audit and Performance Committee report considered on 28
September
Impact
15.
Communication/Consultation

The Task & Finish Group initially met on 26
February to discuss the options available.
Their proposals were subsequently
considered and recommended for approval
by both GAP and Full Council.
A further Task & Finish Group met on 8
November to consider the pilot scheme and
to make final recommendation to GAP.

Community Safety

None

Equalities

None

Health and Safety

None

Page 35

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

Notice of questions will allow for advance
consideration of any legal implications.

Sustainability

None

Ward-specific impacts

None

Workforce/Workplace

The workplace impact of collating written
questions and answers will continue to be
monitored.

Background
16.

17.

18.

19.
20.

21.

The Task & Finish Group met on 8 November to discuss the draft Rule and
protocol. There was complete agreement between the three Members that the
pilot scheme was an improvement on the previous Question Time procedure
and that minor revisions were needed, rather than full scale changes.
Specifically, there was support for the written question and answer aspect of
the procedure, as the Group felt that the quality of answers provided at Full
Council had greatly improved and there were fewer questions that required
answering outside of the meeting.
It was understandable that the piloted scheme had worked far better at the
second trial meeting on 5 October as Members had become more familiar with
the process.
Members discussed the headline areas for review relating to the pilot scheme.
The provision of supplementary questions instead of clarification
questions – the Group considered the issue of follow-up questions and
whether there was a need to permit any supplementary question, as opposed
to a question of clarification relating to the written response as currently
allowed. There was a consensus that the Rule on questions of clarification
should remain unchanged; providing notice of questions had led to informed
and detailed answers but, by permitting follow up questions that were not
related to the written response, there was a risk of going back to a situation
whereby a high number of answers would be provided after the meeting had
taken place. This was of no benefit to the public and follow up questions
should continue to be limited to questions of clarification.
Whether a formal mechanism is required that allows follow-up questions
to be asked/published if they are not reached within the 30 minutes – the
Group considered whether a formal mechanism should be put in place to deal
with questions of clarification that had not been reached within the 30 minutes
designated for Question Time. Members agreed that a mechanism should be
introduced and the amendment can be found at point 1.1. Appendix B. In
short, questions of clarification which were not reached within the 30 minutes
could be submitted the day following the meeting. Written responses would
then be circulated and published on the website within 5 or 10 working days.
The Group asks GAP to decide on whether answers should be provided within
5 or 10 working days. During this discussion, the Group also requested that
the same mechanism be extended to any response that could not be given at
the meeting itself. The amendment can be found at clause iv point 1.4.
Appendix B.

Page 36

22.

23.

To allow questions on matters that have occurred on the day of the
meeting. Currently, 9.00am on the day of the meeting is the cut-off for
urgent questions – the current scheme stipulates that urgent oral questions
need to be provided no later than 9.00am on the day of the meeting. The
Group discussed this issue and agreed it was conceivable that matters could
arise on the day of a meeting which would warrant a question at Full Council.
The Group hoped such cases would be extremely rare and were reassured
that the Chair had a role in consenting to urgent questions. Therefore, the
Group agreed to allow scope for late questions where it was not possible to
anticipate the question before the deadline of 9.00am on the day of the
meeting. The amendment can be found at point 1.3 Appendix B.
Whether non-urgent oral questions are to be permitted, alongside written
questions – the Group discussed the issue of whether oral questions should
be permitted alongside written questions and the consensus was that they
would not add any value to the current process. There was already a provision
for urgent oral questions and oral questions of clarification, which provided a
degree of dynamism during Question Time, but the priority should be ensuring
that well informed and detailed answers were produced in the public interest.
The point was raised that the written question procedure would become
redundant if non-urgent oral questions were re-introduced.

Risk Analysis
1.
Risk

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigating actions

That the current Rule
provides elected
members insufficient
time to ask questions
of the executive and
Committee Chairs.

3

3

To extend question
time to 30 minutes as
recommended.

That the pilot scheme
3
is not fit for use at
UDC and/or
incompatible with the
culture at UDC.

3

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.

Page 37

The scheme has been
piloted for two trial
meetings and views
and comments have
been collated. The
scheme has been
reviewed by the Task
and Finish Group and
minor improvements
have been
recommended.

3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 38

Appendix A – tracked changes left on to highlight revised text

Appendix A – Rule 2.4
2.4.
For a period not exceeding 30 minutes for the Leader, members of the
executive and Chairs of committees to receive questions from members, to
permit the Leader, members of the executive or Chairs to reply and for the
questioner to ask a question of clarification but without any debate on the
issues raised, in accordance with the protocol for Member Questions to the
Executive and Committee Chairs at Council meetings contained in Part 5 of the
Constitution;
Protocol for Member Questions to the Executive and Committee Chairs at
Council meetings
1. Written questions asked by Members of the Council
Members will be required to submit their questions in writing to Democratic Services
before 10:00am eight working days before the Council meeting. The questions
should be concise and indicate to whom the question is directed (the Leader, a
Cabinet Member or a Chair of a Committee). The question should relate to any
matter in respect of which the Council has powers or duties. The written question will
be published with the agenda for that meeting in the order in which the questions
were received, unless the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and/or Section 151
Officer considers the question should be restricted in accordance with the rules
applicable to access to information procedures.
No amendments are permitted to questions once they have been published, unless
they are put forward by the questioner for the purpose of clarification, and members
can withdraw their questions but may not substitute them.
Responses to these questions will be provided in writing and circulated to all
Members no later than 10.00am on the working day before the meeting.
1.1. Supplementary Clarification question
If after a reply is given to a written question the Member who asked the question
considers that the reply requires clarification, they may ask once for clarification but
otherwise no supplemental questions will be permitted except by leave of the Chair.
If the Member who asked the question considers that the reply requires clarification,
but are unable to ask due to lack of time, they may submit their clarification question
in writing to Democratic Services before 5.00pm on the day following the meeting.
The question of clarification will be put to the relevant Chair or Cabinet Member and
a written response will be circulated with all Members and published on the Council’s
website within 5/10 working days of the meeting.
1.2 Restriction on number of questions

Page 39

Appendix A – tracked changes left on to highlight revised text

The number of written questions which may be asked by any one Member at any
one meeting will be limited to two.
1.3 Urgent oral questions
A Member may put an oral question to Cabinet Members and Committee Chairs
regarding any urgent matter that has arisen in the 8 working days preceding the
meeting, subject to obtaining the consent of the Chair of Council. The question
should be provided in writing to Democratic Services, and copied to the relevant
member from whom a response is requested, no later than 9.00am on the day of the
meeting, where possible.
Urgent questions permitted by the Chair will be taken before all other questions.
1.4 Form of answer to oral questions and questions of clarification
An answer may take the form of:
(i) a direct oral answer; or
(ii) where the desired information is contained in a publication of the Council, a
reference to that publication; or
(iii) where the Chief Executive considers that the reply to the question can
conveniently be so given, by a written answer circulated to the Members of the
Council present at the meeting.
(iv) where a reply cannot be provided at the meeting itself, a written answer will be
circulated to all Members of the Council and published on the website within 5/10
working days.
1.5 Time permitted
The time allotted at each meeting for the putting and answering of questions under
this paragraph shall not exceed 30 minutes, without the leave of the Chair of the
Council.
1.6 Exceptions
Questions will not be permitted at Annual Council or budget setting meetings.

Page 40

Appendix B –Task & Finish Group report
Committee:

Task & Finish Group – Rule 2.4

Date:

Title:

Review of pilot scheme Rule 2.4: Time
permitted for questions to the Executive and
Committee Chairs

8 November 2021

Report
Author:

Ben Ferguson, Democratic Services Manager
bferguson@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary
1. At the Annual Council meeting held on 18 May 2021, Members approved a pilot
scheme in relation to Rule 2.4 – ‘Time permitted for questions to the executive
and Committee Chairs’ at Full Council meetings. The amended rule and
accompanying protocol can be found at Appendix B.
2. It was agreed to trial the scheme for two Full Council meetings. The scheme has
been trialled at the meetings held on 20 July 2021 and 5 October 2021.
3. Members’ comments have been received relating to the trial. A summary of
member comments relating to the Rule 2.4. pilot scheme have been attached at
Appendix A. Comments range from agreement with the piloted scheme, to those
that feel it constrains a ‘dynamic’ question and answer session.
4. In light of such comments, it is possible that the pilot scheme will not be approved
in its current form following the end of the trial. Therefore, the Task & Finish has
been re-established in order for a report to be prepared for the Governance, Audit
and Performance Committee’s (GAP) consideration on 22 November 2021.
5. Headline areas for review include:
a. The provision of supplementary questions instead of clarification
questions.
b. Whether a formal mechanism is required that allows follow-up
questions to be asked/published if they are not reached within the 30
minutes.
c. To allow questions on matters that have occurred on the day of the
meeting. Currently, 9.00am on the day of the meeting is the cut-off for
urgent questions.
d. Whether non-urgent oral questions are to be permitted, alongside
written questions.
6. Any recommendations arising from the GAP Committee meeting on 22 November
will be taken to the Full Council meeting on 7 December 2021.
Recommendations

Page 41

Appendix B – Task & Finish Group report
7. The Task and Finish Group is recommended to:
I.

To consider member comments in relation to the trial scheme of Rule 2.4
and the headline areas for review.

II.

In light of such consideration, to determine whether the piloted Rule 2.4 and
the associated protocol require amendment.

III.

To finalise a recommendation to GAP Committee in respect of Rule 2.4 and
the associated protocol.

Financial Implication
8.

None.

Background Papers
9. Full Council report considered on 18 May 2021 and appendices (Item 14).
10. GAP Committee report - 28 September 2021
Impact
11.
Communication/Consultation

The Task & Finish Group initially met on 26
February to discuss the options available.
Their proposals were subsequently
considered and recommended for approval
by both GAP and Full Council. Any
recommendation arising from this Task and
Finish Group will again be considered by
both GAP and Full Council.

Community Safety

None

Equalities

None

Health and Safety

None

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

Notice of questions will allow for advance
consideration of any legal implications.

Sustainability

None

Ward-specific impacts

None

Workforce/Workplace

The workplace impact of collating written
questions and answers will continue to be
monitored.

Page 42

Appendix B – Task & Finish Group report

Background
Headline Areas for Review:
12. The provision of supplementary questions instead of clarification
questions – Members may wish to consider the re-introduction of
supplementary questions to the protocol. During the meeting of 20 July 2021,
there was some confusion over what constituted a ‘question of clarification’ –
by definition, the scope of such questions are limited to clarifying the content
of the response. A supplementary question would be less constrained. This
may satisfy Members who have called for a more ‘dynamic’ question and
answer session. Equally, Members may feel that the procedure was better
understood at the meeting of 5 October 2021 and that, by removing the
‘ambush’ nature of supplementary questions, the answers were better
informed and more detailed by virtue of having had advance notice of the
question.
13. Whether a formal mechanism is required that allows follow-up questions
to be asked/published if they are not reached within the 30 minutes – The
pilot scheme currently has no mechanism to deal with questions that have not
been dealt within the 30 minutes’ limit. As written answers are published the
day before in response to substantive questions, this issue is only in relation to
‘follow-up’ questions (currently, only questions of clarification are permitted but
you may recommend that all supplementary questions are to be allowed). A
potential solution is to incorporate the following wording into the protocol,
“In the event that it is not possible to ask a question of clarification due
to lack of time, such questions will be put to the Leader, Chair or
relevant Portfolio Holder in writing after the meeting. A written answer to
the question will be produced and circulated to all Members.”
Alternatively, Members may feel that 30 minutes is sufficient and, as the
substantive questions will have been answered in writing, there is no need to
introduce a specific mechanism to deal with questions of clarification that have
not been asked within the time limit.
14. To allow questions on matters that have occurred on the day of the
meeting. Currently, 9.00am on the day of the meeting is the cut-off for
urgent questions – The current scheme stipulates that urgent oral questions
need to be provided no later than 9.00am on the day of the meeting. As it is
conceivable that matters will arise on the day of a meeting, it is recommended
to allow scope for late questions where it was not possible to anticipate the
question before the deadline. As the Chair has a role in consenting to the
urgent question, it is suggested to amend the protocol to the following
(additional wording ‘where possible’):
A Member may put an oral question to Cabinet Members and Committee
Chairs regarding any urgent matter that has arisen in the 8 working days
preceding the meeting, subject to attaining the consent of the Chair of Council.
The question should be provided in writing to Democratic Services, and copied

Page 43

Appendix B – Task & Finish Group report
to the relevant member from who a response is requested, no later than
9.00am on the day of the meeting where possible.
15. Whether non-urgent oral questions are to be permitted, alongside written
questions – There has been some demand for non-urgent oral questions to
be asked alongside written questions, in order to provide a more ‘dynamic’
question and answer session at Full Council. One of the primary motivators for
introducing advanced notice of written questions was to facilitate the
conditions required to give well-informed and detailed answers at Full Council.
Furthermore, there was a consensus at the previous T&F Group meeting that
question time at Council was antagonistic and the working environment might
be improved if the ‘ambush/surprise’ element of questions was removed.
Members are asked to consider the pros and cons of non-urgent questions
and whether a mechanism is to be added to the protocol. If so, Members may
wish to consider how non-urgent oral questions integrate with written and
urgent questions e.g. are non-urgent oral questions to be taken after all other
questions have been dealt with? If non-urgent questions are not heard in the
30 minutes, are they to be asked in writing after the meeting?
Next steps
16. The Task and Finish Group are asked to consider and discuss these headline
topics and to reach agreement on the final version of rule 2.4 to be presented
to GAP Committee in November. Comments arising from the discussion will
be incorporated into the draft GAP report, including the finalised protocol, and
will be circulated for the Task & Finish Group’s review before it is published
with the Committee’s next agenda.

Risk Analysis
17.
Risk

Likelihood

That the pilot scheme 3
is not fit for use at
UDC and/or
incompatible with the
culture at UDC.

Impact

Mitigating actions

3

Consider member
feedback on the pilot
scheme and amend
as appropriate.

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 44

Agenda Item 7
Committee:

Governance, Audit & Performance Committee

Title:

Quarter 2 2021/22 Performance Indicator
Report

Report
Author:

Oliver Knight, PFI & Performance Officer

Date:
Monday 22nd
November 2021

Oknight@uttlesford.gov.uk
01799510440

Summary
1. This report presents the Quarter 2 2021/22 outturn and data analysis for all
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and Performance Indicators (PIs).
2. As we progress through the Covid-19 pandemic, services still continue to
perform well. It should be noted that short-term comparisons do however show
a slight decrease in performance and this is evidenced through movement
across the majority of performance statuses.
Recommendations
3. None
Financial Implications
4. There are no financial implications associated with this report.
Background Papers
5. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report - None
Impact
6.
Communication/Consultation

None

Community Safety

None

Equalities

None beyond service improvement on the
equalities performance indicator

Health and Safety

None

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

None

Sustainability

None

Page 45

Ward-specific impacts

None

Workforce/Workplace

None

Situation
7. Appendix A presents data for Quarter 2 2021/22 (1st July 2021 to 30th
September 2021) for each individual Key Performance Indicator (KPI) and
Performance Indicator (PI) collected and reported by the authority during this
quarter. Outturn data for this quarter is shown in bold.
8. All data and accompanying performance notes have been reviewed by the
Corporate Management Team and Joint Executive Team.
9. Data for the majority of PIs is collected and reported on a quarterly basis; no
data is available for PIs monitored on an annual or half-year basis during this
time period.
10. Performance is monitored against all targets agreed by the Corporate
Management Team in March 2021 during the 2021/22 Annual Service
Planning process.
11. For the purposes of comparison, the report contains data for Quarter 2
2021/22 and the previous four quarters. Presenting these consecutive quarters
of data enables both short & long-term comparisons to be reached;
represented by the trend arrows alongside each PI.
12. Where data is not yet available for the Quarter 2 2021/22 reporting period,
explanation has been provided in the Appendix. Missing data will be reported
to future meetings of the Governance, Audit & Performance Committee.
13. Performance during Quarter 2 2021/22 can be summarised as follows:
Status

Quarter 2 2021/22
15

47%

5

16%

12

37%

14. The table below enables a short-term comparison of performance trends
through evaluating Quarter 2 2021/22 performance to attainment during
Quarter 1 2021/22:

Page 46

Status

Quarter 1 2021/22

Quarter 2 2021/22

19

59%

15

47%

5

16%

5

16%

8

25%

12

37%

15. Whilst some Quarter 2 data is still missing resulting in those PIs not being
included in the table above, clearly there has been a short-term shift in
performance. Looking at outturn values, this reduction in performance is
evidenced throughout both Corporate Services and Public Services. For
example, there have been quarterly changes from Green to Red statuses (e.g.
KPI 20 Sickness Days), but this is also notable in Public Services too (KPI 18
Major Planning Processing). Nevertheless, it should be noted that there are
still some improvements from quarter to quarter (e.g. PI 46 Major Appeals
Upheld).
16. There are three KPIs that have not met their target for Quarter 2 2021/22 but
are within the 10% threshold and have an ‘amber’ status:
KPI 05
KPI 17
KPI 08(a)

Percentage of Council Tax Collected (Max)*
Local Council Tax Support Collection Rate (Max)*
Average time in days (all re-lets including time spent in works)
(Min)

17. There are six KPIs that have exceeded the 10% performance threshold for
Quarter 2 2021/22 and have a ‘red’ status:
KPI 06(b)
Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax Support Change
Events (Min)
The increase in time taken is a direct correlation to the increase in Test and
Trace Support Payment applications as well as the continuation of Universal
Credit annual review notifications. The Department of Work and Pensions
commenced an annual review of claims received at the start of the Covid-19
pandemic, as such creating this increase in workload. As this is only expected
to be a short-term issue, performance should improve throughout the
remainder of the 2021/22 year.
KPI 20, KPI 22, KPI 22
Average days lost per FTE through sickness absence (KPI 20), shortterm sickness absence (KPI 21) and long-term sickness absence (KPI 22)
Targeted work is being undertaken to bring down sickness levels. In terms of
long-term sickness absence, Human Resources and service managers have
been proactively working with each case offering advice and support through
the appropriate processes. It is anticipated that an improvement will be seen in
the sickness levels for Quarter 3 2021/22.

Page 47

KPI 03
Percentage of Non-Domestic Rates Collected (Max)*
Whilst collection rates have improved year-on-year when comparing Quarter 2
2020/21 collection to Quarter 2 2021/22, the target has still been missed.
Business Rates incomes continues to be collected at lower levels than before
the pandemic, but it is expected that this will improve as the economy
continues to recover.
KPI 11
Processing of planning applications: Major applications (within 13 weeks
or including any agreed extension of time) (Max)
Whilst on a cumulative basis through the 2021/22 year the target has been
reached, performance during Quarter 2 2021/22 has clearly missed target.
Project management of major cases is being reviewed to establish areas of
improvement needed to drive forward service delivery.
18. If members have any questions regarding the data, or would like to see a more
detail analysis on a particular indicator, then please do not hesitate to contact
the report author.
Risk Analysis
19.
Risk
If performance
indicators do not
meet
quarterly/annual
targets then
areas such as
customer
satisfaction and
statutory
adherence to
government led
requirements
could be affected
leading to a loss
in reputation for
the Council.

Likelihood
2 Performance
measures
performance
on or above
target. Where
necessary,
accompanying
notes to
individual
performance
indicators
detail
improvement
plans.

Impact

Mitigating actions

3 –The
majority of
service
areas in the
Council are
customerfacing.

Performance is
monitored by
CMT, and the
Governance, Audit
& Performance
Committee on a
quarterly basis.
The inclusion of
give quarters of
data helps to
identify trends.
Where necessary,
the Performance
Team provides
trend analysis to
support CMT and
Service Managers
in improving
performance.

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 48

Appendix A – Quarter 2 2021/22 Performance Indicator Data



Page 49

Quarter 2 2021/22 Performance Report: KPIs, PIs & LPIs
Governance, Audit & Performance Committee – 22nd November 2021
Key:

* Cumulatively monitored
Max
# Quarterly targets profiled Min

Aim to maximise performance
Aim to minimise performance

Status Symbols

Target achieved

Page 50

Target not achieved but within 10% of achieving target

Target not achieved by over 10%

Trend Arrows

Short Term

Assesses performance in Q2 2021/22 in comparison to Q1 2021/22

Long Term

Assesses performance in Q2 2021/22 in comparison to Q2 2020/21

1

Directorate: CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Democratic & Electoral Services
PI Code & Short
Name

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Q2
2021/22

PI 21
Percentage of
minutes from
meetings
made available
to the public
within 10
working days
(Max)

78%

61%

77%

72%

80%

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 24 Denominator: 30
The late minutes primarily relate to additional pressures due to the
facilitation of in-person meetings with the Covid-19 protocol and team
members taking annual leave.
95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

Page 51

Legal Services
PI Code & Short
Name

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Q2
2021/22

PI 06
Percentage of
standard
searches
carried out in
10 working
days (Max)

100%

99.5%

100%

100%

99.73%

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 371 Denominator: 372
All searches were dispatched on or before day 9. It would appear that the
report does not count day 0, and as such the outturn returns one search
being outside of the 10 working day timeframe.
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2

Directorate: CORPORATE SERVICES
Benefits
PI Code & Short
Name

KPI 04
Accuracy of
processing HB/CTB claims
(Max)

Page 52

KPI 06 (a)
Time taken to
process
Housing
Benefit/Council
Tax Benefit
new claims
(Days) (Min)

KPI 06 (b)
Time taken to
process
Housing
Benefit/Council
Tax Benefit
change events
(Min)

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Q2
2021/22

99.31%

99.21%

100.00
%

98.77%

99.38%

98.00%

98.00%

98.00%

98.00%

98.00%

15.3

16.3

16.1

14.5

15.9

20.0

20.0

20.0

19.0

19.0

6.3

4.9

4.0

7.9

10.2

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 160 Denominator: 161
124 New claims and 37 Change of circumstances checked in quarter 2 of
2021/22, and 1 financial error has been identified, giving an accuracy
rate of 99.38%. We continue to achieve our target of 98% due to our
proactive checking arrangements which identify any potential training
issues quickly and allow us to give prompt and appropriate training.

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 3,730 Denominator: 234
56 new claims to Housing Benefit (HB) were processed taking a total of
1,037 days. 178 new claims to Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) were
processed taking 2,693 days. This is a combined total of 234 new claims
taking 3,730 days; an average of 15.94 days

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 40,106 Denominator: 3,949
1,010 changes in circumstance to Housing Benefit (HB) were processed
taking a total of 5,842 days. 2,939 changes in circumstance to Local
Council Tax Support (LCTS) were processed taking 34,264 days. This is
a combined total of 3,949 changes taking 40,106 days; an average of
10.16 days. The increase in time taken is a direct correlation to the
increase in Test and Trace Support Payment applications as well as the
continuation of Universal Credit annual review notifications.

3

Customer Services & Performance
PI Code & Short
Name

Q2
2020/21

81%

Q3
2020/21

82%

Q4
2020/21

86%

Q1
2021/22

84%

Q2
2021/22

83%

Page 53

PI 44
Percentage of
customer
enquiries
resolved at
first point of
contact (Max)

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 23,886 Denominator: 28,740
Performance of this PI has continued to be above target this
quarter. Going forwards the aim is to improve performance further
by ensuring all staff training and development is kept to a high
standard so that First Contact Resolution (FCR) is maximised
across all contact channels. It is evident that FCR is higher for
queries relating to Council Tax, Benefits and Waste Services with
an average of 94% of calls being resolved by a CSC Advisor. FCR
is also monitored and included in the outturn for this PI for all
emails received into the uconnect, Garden Waste and Waste
Aware inboxes. 76% of all emails received are dealt with at first
point of contact within the CSC environment.
Information sharing along with continued training and
development will be undertaken with service areas where FCR is
lower across all contact channels. However these queries tend to
require more specialist input requiring back office intervention and
the CSC relying on officers being available for advice and
call/email transfers.

86%

86%

86%

82%

82%

A reduced hours Front Desk service has been offered from Saffron
Walden as of the 26th July however the visitor numbers have not
been included in the calculation for this quarter. As the number of
visits are relatively low and broad ranging it is recommended that
a separate report be made available purely for Front Desk
enquiries.
The council's Live Chat facility was launched on the 10th
September. Data for this channel will be included in this PI from
Quarter 3 onwards.

4

Finance
PI Code & Short
Name

KPI 01
Percentage of
supplier
invoices paid
within 30 days
of receipt by
the Council
(Max)

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Q2
2021/22

99.10%

99.60%

99.70%

99.70%

99.70%

98.00%

98.00%

98.00%

98.00%

98.00%

24.8

55.3

20.9

18.6

16.4

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

3

7

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

PI 60
Number of
Insurance
Claims Made
(Min)
PI 61
Percentage of
Insurance
Claims settled
as a proportion
of Insurance
Claims Made
(Min)

LPI introduced for the 2021/22
year

N/A
9

9

40.00%

229.00
%

LPI introduced for the 2021/22
year
0%

0%

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 1,330 Denominator: 1,334
99.7% of invoices paid within 30 days of receipt. Invoices are promptly
paid and or dealt with if a query comes up due to our constant
communications with all departments and suppliers. 3 of the 4 invoices
paid after 30 days were due to works not completed by the supplier so
payment was delayed until this was confirmed. The other invoice was
delayed as it was missing a PO on the document, and we need to identify
the correct department to take responsibility for the invoice.
Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 21,933 Denominator: 1,334
We continue to work on reducing the gap between the invoice date and
paid date for invoices received. This has improved performance from the
last quarter by 2 days. We are reporting on additional factors as well – for
example when Creditors receive invoices they are processed, and reports
therefore indicate that 98% of invoices are paid within 7 days of receipt
 Average days to pay supplier (invoice to paid): = 16.44 days.
 Average days to pay within receipt (received by creditors to paid):
= 5.44 days
 Average days to pay within receipt (received by creditors after
additional intervention by department to paid): = 4.74 days

Page 54

PI 02
Average time
(Days) to pay
supplier
invoices
(Min)

Q2
2020/21

N/A

Quarter 2 2021/22
Count: 7

N/A

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 16 Denominator: 7
There is no specific driver for the increase in closed changes, looks to be
due to Zurich going through annual process of closing off all claims
resolved

5

Human Resources
PI Code & Short
Name

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Q2
2021/22

KPI 20
Average days
lost per FTE
through
sickness
absence based
on the rolling
year (Min)

9.56

8.70

7.90

8.1

10.22

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.70

8.50

0.93

0.80

1.08

0.76

1.46

1.05

1.05

1.05

0.95

0.95

1.07

1.41

0.50

1.28

1.27

0.95

0.95

0.95

1.05

1.05

Page 55

KPI 21
Average
number of
days lost per
FTE through
short-term
sickness
absence based
on rolling
quarter
(Min)
KPI 22
Average
number of
days lost per
FTE through
long-term
sickness
absence
during rolling
quarter (Min)

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 3023 (Total number of FTE days sickness absence in rolling
year)
Denominator: 295.91 (Average FTE during rolling year)
There has been a significant increase this quarter, which is mainly due to
sickness absence in ES which is a front-line service. Targeted work is
being done to bring down sickness levels in this area.

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 434.46 (Total number FTE absence days for short-term
sickness in rolling quarter)
Denominator: 298.29 (Average FTE during rolling quarter)
There has been a small increase in short term sickness since last quarter,
which again is predominantly in Environmental Services. Targeted work is
being done to bring down sickness levels.

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 378.02 (Total number FTE absence days for long-term
sickness in rolling quarter)
Denominator: 298.29 (Average FTE during rolling quarter)
There has been a significant increase in long term sickness this quarter,
with 11 employees having been absent, several of whom needed
operations. However, 8 have since returned to work or left the
organisation so there are now only 3 employees on long term sickness
absence. Therefore a reduction in long term absences next quarter is
expected.

6

Information Communication Technology
PI Code & Short
Name

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Q2
2021/22

PI 20
Percentage of
IT help Desk
calls resolved
within target
(Max)

98.00%

96.30%

95.70%

95.10%

95.10%

Page 56

96.00%

96.00%

96.00%

96.00%

96.00%

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Q2
2021/22

666

474

532

759

2,610

3,500

3,000

3,200

500

1,500

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
Target has not been met this quarter due to training requirements of new
staff members. Other absences in the team over the summer holiday
have also affected performance.

Museum
PI Code & Short
Name

PI 49
Users of the
Museum
Service
(Max) #

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
Count: 2,610
Visitor figures are steadily increasing, though not yet at pre-Covid levels.
User figures have been boosted by remote outreach (loan boxes, activity
packs and participation in off-site events) and use of the Castle site for
activities during the summer holidays. Cumulative 3,369 users (Quarter 1
& Quarter 2 2021/22).

7

Revenues
PI Code & Short
Name

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Q2
2021/22

KPI 03
Percentage of
Non-Domestic
Rates
Collected
(Max) *

44.88%

68.10%

92.45%

27.44%

52.18%

58.40%

86.20%

98.80%

29.60%

58.40%

56.15%

83.98%

97.40%

29.35%

57.08%

58.40%

86.20%

98.80%

29.60%

58.40%

96.52%

96.92%

97.49%

93.57%

96.08%

95.00%

96.00%

98.00%

89.00%

94.00%

46.17%

68.62%

93.83%

24.33%

46.38%

50.00%

69.00%

89.00%

25.00%

50.00%

Page 57

KPI 05
Percentage of
Council Tax
collected
(Max) *

KPI 16
Rent collected
as percentage
of rent owed
(including
arrears b/f)
(Max) *

KPI 17
Local Council
Tax Support
Collection Rate
(Max)*

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: £22,340,424.42
Denominator: £42,811,554.04
Business Rates income continues to be difficult in the current pandemic, it
is expected this will improve as the economy continues to recover.
Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: £41,274,151.26
Denominator: £72,308,441.20
The Council Tax collection rate has reduced due to the continued effect of
the Covid-19 pandemic and associated measures. Recovery action is now
continuing in the form of reminders being issued (last batch sent
12.10.21) and action through the magistrates court has been ongoing
since July and it is anticipated that results will improve.
Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: £7,958,456.46
Denominator: £8,282,807.81
This PI has exceeded the target due to the dedicated support offered to
tenants within the confines of the current Covid-19 crisis, including early
intervention and payment advice.

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: £421,636.57 (Net Receipts)
Denominator: £909,056.64 (Total Net Liability)
Giving a collection rate of 46.38%. The collection rate for LCTS is slightly
below target; this is due to the ongoing implications caused by the Covid19 pandemic. Officers within the service are actively working with
claimants to support them in managing any arrears and this will be
closely monitored during the next quarter in line with the furlough
scheme ending and the possible implications of this.

8

12.3%

0.9%

1.4%

2.1%

2.3%

4.0%

4.0%

4.0%

4.00%

4.00%

2.42%

2.86%

2.45%

2.48%

2.71%

2.80%

2.80%

2.80%

3.00%

3.00%

PI 03
Percentage of
sundry debt
income
overdue (Min)
PI 51
Current Rent
Arrears as a
percentage of
the annual
rent debit
(excluding HB
adj) (Min)

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: £11,497.11 (Debt over 90 days old)
Denominator: £495,628.84 (Total outstanding debt)
2.32% uncollected. The current level of overdue debt has increased
marginally and this is consistent with the previous quarter. Although this
is slightly increased compared to last year, which indicates that there may
be emerging difficulties in debtors managing their payments. This will be
monitored and if the trend continues the service will provide more
detailed analysis to enable this to be managed effectively.
Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: £427,609.48
Denominator: £15,799,108.76
This PI is currently exceeding target. Continued specific focus on rent
collection activities within the confines of the current Covid19 crisis has
supported the performance of this PI.

Page 58

Directorate: PUBLIC SERVICES

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Q2
2021/22

Developing

Developing

Developing

Developing

Achieving

Achieving

Achieving

Achieving

PI 07
The level of
achievement
attained under
the Equality
Framework for
Local
Government
(Max)

Q2
2020/21

Developing

PI Code & Short
Name

Achieving

Communities
Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
‘1’ – Developing
 Staff survey has been developed to encourage visible advocates
for Equality, Diversity and Inclusion. The questions are asking for
suggestions to help develop workshops for staff.
 A timetable/listening event plan is being developed with a
consultant to help us learn more about our community.
 Website has been updated for Black History Month.

9

Environmental Health (Commercial)
PI Code & Short
Name

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Data not available due to Covid-19
pandemic.

Q2
2021/22

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Quarter 2 2021/22
Q2 has seen a further demonstration of the way Covid -19 controls,
necessary to restrict the spread of the virus, has impacted upon the way
our local food businesses operate and the way in which we continue to
effectively engage with them. This has primarily manifested as
 Reduced opening hours
 Diversification of business models (which are becoming
permanent)
 Reduced staffing levels and inability to recruit
 Simplification or reduction of menus
 Ongoing financial pressure
 Increased number of new businesses registering (with limited food
hygiene knowledge)

N/A

N/A

Page 59

PI 41
Percentage of
routine food
hygiene
premises
inspections
completed
within the
quarter (Max)

N/A

98%

98%

98%

98%

98%

Performance Note

N/A

The EH commercial team continue to respond to these challenges
effectively. Social media continues to be actively monitored and officer
district presence continues to increase. New food businesses remain in
focus with dedicated a resource focusing on this area. While most of these
businesses are low risk in nature, the lack of appropriate food hygiene
knowledge or understanding of food safety management including
allergen awareness is of concern.
Covid related requests for advice from both business operators and
members of the public have dropped significantly, with our focus now
primarily being on event management risk rather than the hospitality
sector. Monitoring for significant failings remains part of the routine
inspection process and we continue to respond to complaints/concerns.
Reporting PIs in the traditional way as a percentage of inspections
achieved against those due within the quarter remains difficult but we
continue to monitor and look for effective ways to address the inspection
backlog accrued over the last 18 months. This has primarily arisen due to
businesses being closed for a significant period of this time, although
resourcing (diversion and recruitment) has also impacted. Most
backlogged premise’s inspections fall within the D rated category and as
such are within the lower risk bracket. This situation is not unique to

10

Uttlesford, and we remain confident that over time will be addressed but
ensuring sufficient inspecting officer resource does remain a potential
challenge. Inspection priority will remain for those premises posing the
highest risk (Category A, B and C)
Q2 data
Food premises inspected (routine and new premises) : 101
New Food Premises registering in this period: 46
New food premises contacted / inspected: 21 (14 further premises
have inspections scheduled)
Advice
-

provision (EH work)
Food advice: 21
Alleged food poisoning: 14
Advice provision Covid matters:15
H&S interventions including RIDDOR, statutory notifications and
complaints: 19

Page 60

Housing Strategy & Operations
PI Code & Short
Name

KPI 08 (a)
Average re-let
time in days
(all re-lets
including time
spent in
works) (Min)
PI 16
Number of
households
living in temp
accommodatio
n (Min)

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Q2
2021/22

80.5

72.5

68.5

40.5

46.9

42

42

42

42

42

17

23

18

24

21

18

18

18

18

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 3,615
Denominator: 77
8 days were spent with the lettings process and the rest in works.

Quarter 2 2021/22
Count: 21
Bed and Breakfast: 9 Uttlesford District Council: 12
Snapshot: 30 Sept 2021.
Use of B&B has remained high as move-on from Council-owned selfcontained accommodation has slowed for larger families.

18

11

Planning: Development Management
PI Code & Short
Name

Page 61

KPI 11
Processing of
planning
applications:
Major
applications
(within 13
weeks or
including any
agreed
extension of
time) (Max)
KPI 12
Processing of
planning
applications:
Minor
applications
(within 8
weeks or
including EOT)
(Max)
KPI 13
Processing of
planning
applications:
Other
applications
(within 8
weeks or
including any
agreed
extension of
time) (Max)

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Q2
2021/22

100.00
%

66.67%

90.91%

100.00
%

50.00%

60.00%

60.00%

60.00%

60.00%

60.00%

88.68%

87.86%

83.67%

84.25%

83.20%

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 2 Denominator: 4
Cumulative: Numerator – 6 and Denominator – 8
Cumulative annual figure being achieved. Need to look at cases
missing thirteen weeks in terms of project management of major
cases.

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 104 Denominator: 125
Cumulative – Numerator: 211 Denominator: 252 (83.73%)
Target being achieved, possible over reliance on Extension of Times.
75.00%

75.00%

75.00%

75.00%

75.00%

93.94%

85.82%

85.05%

85.01%

84.07%
Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 285 Denominator: 339
Cumulative – Numerator: 597, Denominator: 706 (84.56%).
Cumulative annual figure being achieved. Target being achieved
possible over-reliance on Extensions of Time.

82.00%

82.00%

82.00%

82.00%

82.00%

12

PI 24 (d)
Appeals
allowed for
enforcement
notices (Min)

Page 62

PI 32
Percentage
planning
applications
validated
within 5 days
(Max)
PI 46
Quality of
Decisions:
Percentage of
Appeals
Upheld for
Major Planning
Applications as
a Proportion of
Appeals Raised
(Min)
PI 47
Quality of
Decisions:
Percentage of
Appeals
Upheld for
Non-Major
Planning
Applications as
a Proportion of
Appeals Raised
(Min)

0.0%

50.0%

0.0%

0.0%

?
?

30.0%

30.0%

30.0%

30.0%

30.0%

99.77%

99.79%

99.39%

99.42%

98.72%

95.00%

95.00%

95.00%

95.00%

95.00%

50.00%

33.33%

33.33%

66.66%

0.00%

?

?

Quarter 2 2021/22
Data is awaiting further clarification.

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 771 Denominator: 781
Cumulative – Numerator: 1,290, Denominator – 1,303 (99%)
Despite the slowness of processing applications on the system (the
document management system and uniform), and working remotely
the team are processing applications in a timely manner.

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 0 Denominator: 2
Cumulative – Numerator: 2, Denominator: 5 (40%).
Both major appeals dismissed. Cumulatively still high.
30.0%

30.0%

30.0%

30.0%

30.0%

35.89%

73.91%

63.63%

24.00%

35.29%
Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 6 Denominator: 17
Cumulative – Numerator: 12, Denominator: 42 (28.57%)
Rising level of non-major appeals being allowed. Appeal workshop
set for early December to consider trends.

30.00%

30.00%

30.00%

30.00%

30.00%

13

Street Services
PI Code & Short
Name

Q2
2020/21

Q3
2020/21

Q4
2020/21

Q1
2021/22

Q2
2021/22

KPI 14
Percentage of
household
waste sent for
reuse,
recycling and
composting
(LAA) (Max)

53.45%

52.19%

49.54%

51.51%

54.03%

Page 63

KPI 15 (b)
Percentage of
domestic
collections of
waste and
recyclables
successfully
made on first
visit (Max)

PI 48
Attainment of
‘Green’ for
Operator
Compliance
Risk Score
(Yes or No)

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Performance Note

Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 5,034.38 (total waste sent for reuse, recycling and
composting)
Denominator: 9,317.48 (total domestic waste arising)
51.50%

51.50%

51.50%

52.00%

52.00%

99.99%

99.99%

99.99%

99.99%

99.97%
Quarter 2 2021/22
Numerator: 1,030,505 (Number of successful collections)
Denominator: 1,030,797 (Total number of scheduled collections)
292 bins (general & recyclable waste) were reported as missed from 1st
July to 30th September 2021.

99.95%

99.95%

99.95%

99.97%

99.97%

Yes

Yes

Yes

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

N/A

N/A

Quarter 2 2021/22
The Transport office is still unavailable, however UDC continues to hold
a green operator’s license.

14

Agenda Item 8
Committee:

Governance, Audit & Performance Committee

Date:

Title:

2021/22 Corporate Risk Register Update –
Borrowing & Investments

Monday 22nd
November 2021

Report
Author:

Adrian Webb, Director of Finance and
Corporate Services
awebb@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary
1.

This report advises the committee of a new risk in the 2021/22 Corporate Risk
Register relating to Borrowing and Investments.

2.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) has issued
a consultation on changes to the Prudential Code, particularly affecting
commercial investments. In addition, Government is considering changes
relating to Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and potential use of Debt Caps.
Any of these changes have the potential to result in significant financial
challenges for the Council.

Recommendations
3.

Members note the inclusion of a new risk relating to Borrowing & Investment
(21-CR-12) in the 2021/22 Corporate Risk Register.

Financial Implications
The Council’s £275million investment portfolio generates a net annual revenue
return (2023/24 forecast) of £7.1 million. This is used to offset the £16.2 million
annual net core service budget. Changes to financial rules relating to
investments by Local Authorities could in extremis result in a reduction in the
Council’s usable net revenue income of that £7.1 million. This risk considers the
implications of the proposed changes to financial rules.

4.

Background Papers
5.

The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.
-

Draft Prudential Code
UDC Cabinet Report, entitled ‘Prudential Code consultation and proposed
changes to Minimum Revenue Provision and possible debt caps’ (15th
November 2021).

Impact
6.
Communication/Consultation

Further communication and consultation on

Page 64

proposed financial changes once the
consultation period is completed, and
implications for Council are identified.
Community Safety

No specific implications

Equalities

No specific implications

Health and Safety

No specific implications

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

Risk of proposed changes will be managed
through building into 2022/23 budget
setting process, to ensure a compliant and
balanced budget is delivered.

Sustainability

No specific implications

Ward-specific impacts

No specific implications

Workforce/Workplace

Proposed financial changes are likely to
directly impact on the workforce both in
short & medium terms.

Situation – Government’s Proposed Changes
7.

In September 2021, CIPFA launched an eight-week consultation on proposed
changes to the Prudential Code to take effect from 1st April 2022. In previous
versions of the code, CIPFA has advised against the Council making
commercial investments ‘purely for yield’, and Members will be aware that UDC
obtained a QC opinion that the Council was not undertaking investments for
yield, but instead to generate income to support service delivery.

8.

The new proposed code has changed emphasis by rewording the guidance to
‘an authority must not borrow to invest primarily for financial return’. This
removes the justification given in the QC opinion and could effectively end
future commercial investments where that investment is primarily for financial
return. There could also be implications for the Council’s existing investment
portfolio.

9.

Following discussions held with senior officials at CIPFA, the Council has
provided a proposed wording change as a response to this consultation. Detail
of the proposed wording change can be seen in the Council’s Cabinet Report,
dated 15th November 2021. Without the Council’s proposed wording change, an
unintended consequence of the financial rule changes could be to force the sale
of some or part of these assets quickly. This would create a significant revenue
shortfall, risking the Council’s ability to achieve a balanced and compliant
budget.

10. Further changes the government are considering would also tighten regulations
on the Council’s ability to undertake commercial investments. The two key

Page 65

changes being considered relate to Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and
possible debt caps:
- MRP is where a council would need to set aside an element of commercial
revenue income each year to ensure outstanding borrowing could be repaid
at the end of a loan period. Uttlesford already applies MRP however at a rate
of 0% on commercial assets as their residual value is forecast to exceed their
purchase price.
- Debt Caps are also being considered, which would restrict the amount some
or all councils could borrow. Although the cap specifics have not been
referenced, it is likely this Council would receive such a cap if they were
introduced. At what level of borrowing is also unknown; if at a lower level of
borrowing than the Council currently have then this cap may necessitate
selling some of the Council’s commercial assets.
The Risk
11. These government changes are intended to protect the taxpayer from financial
difficulties some local authorities have got into through commercial investment.
Uttlesford’s robust investment criteria and risk management oversight has
resulted in our investments being sound and well-managed. Nevertheless,
these proposed changes could still affect our existing commercial investment
portfolio.
12. The current investment portfolio generates an annual revenue return (2023/24
forecast) of £7.1 million. This is used to offset the £16.2 million (2023/24
forecast) annual net service budget. If the Council was ultimately forced to sell
part of its assets due to these proposed changes, it would result in a reduction
in usable net revenue income of up to £7.1 million.
13. The next five years, and beyond, could therefore be challenging in balancing
existing service delivery demands with reduced revenue budgets.
14. As such, a new risk has been introduced to the 2021/22 Corporate Risk
Register (21-CR-12 Borrowing & Investments) to narrate the risk posed to the
Council through these potential changes. Appendix A shows this risk, alongside
both current controls and further actions which work towards mitigating the
impact of this risk. Members should note that the likelihood of this risk is
registered as 4 (Near Certainty) for original, current & target likelihoods. The
Council is aware that some changes will happen following the CIPFA
consultation and wider Government changes.
15. This risk will be regularly monitored at a corporate level by the Corporate
Management Team, and an update brought to the next meeting of this
Committee as part of the review of the whole Corporate Risk Register.

Page 66

Risk Analysis
16.
Risk
If risks are not
properly identified
or managed then
preventable
problems could
occur and affect
the council’s
finances,
reputation or
resources.

Likelihood

Impact

1

Mitigating actions
4

The Council’s Risk
Management Policy
and Corporate Risk
Register ensure
effective risk
management is
placed centrally within
its operations, both at
a corporate level and
service-level.

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.
Appendix A – New 21/22 Corporate Risk: Borrowing & Investments

Page 67

Page 68

21-CR-12 Investments
Owner
If CIPFA and the Government
implement changes to the legislation
and guidance around borrowing and
investments*, either individually or
collectively, it would lead to a
significant adverse impact on both the
Council’s revenue budget and the
investment portfolio.

Page 69

*namely changes to the Prudential
Code that would stop future
commercial activity and an update to
the rules on Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) and the allocation of a
debt cap

Original
Likelihood

Original
Impact

Original
Score

4

4

16

Current
Likelihood

Current
Impact

Current
Score

Current Controls
-

Further Actions
-

AW

4

4

16

UDC responding to CIPFA consultation
Discussions held with DLUHC (formerly MHCLG)
Raising awareness of risk to Members & Staff

-

Continued monitoring and reporting of consultation
outcomes to Members & Staff.
Continued review and monitoring of risk at a corporate
level.
Identification of budget efficiencies to mitigate financial
impact

Target
Likelihood

Target
Impact

Target Score

Action owner

Planned Completion date

4

3

12

AW/AK

31.03.2022

Appendix A – Borrowing & Investments Risk

Agenda Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 70

Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 88

